
 

PLEASE NOTIFY ACOG AT 234-2264 (TDD/TTY 234-2217) BY 5:00 P.M. JULY 22, 2010 
IF YOU DESIRE A SIGN-LANGUAGE INTERPRETER AT THE MEETING 

 
 

 
DATE:  July 20, 2010 
 
TO:  Encompass 2035 Citizens Advisory Committee 
 
FROM:  Holly Massie, Special Programs Officer 
  Transportation Planning & Data Services 
 
SUBJECT: Meeting Notice 
 
 

The Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) will hold a regular meeting on  
 

MONDAY, JULY 26, 2010 AT 3:00 P.M. 
 

in the ACOG Board Room, 21 E Main St., Suite 100, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. 
 

AGENDA 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS  (Attachment I) 

 
II. APPROVAL OF MARCH 15, 2010 MINUTES  (Attachment II) 

Action Requested:  Motion to approve the March 15, 2010 CAC Meeting Minutes. 
 
III. BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE OF PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA FOR ENCOMPASS 2035 

Action Requested:  None. For information only. 
 
IV. REVIEW OF PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA, GUIDEBOOK AND SURVEY TOOL (Attachment IV) 

Action Requested:  Consider recommending that the Intermodal Transportation Policy 
Committee (ITPC) approve the Encompass 2035 Project Selection Criteria 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 
VII. ADJOURN 

 
 
 
 



 

I-1 

 
ATTACHMENT I 

ENCOMPASS 2035 CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
VOTING MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES 

Organization Members Alternates 

Airport Express 
Larry Lucas 
President 

David Batson 
General Manager 

American Indian Cultural Ctr. & Museum 
Nathan Hart 
Director of Community Affairs   

Areawide Aging Agency, Inc. 
Don Hudman 
Executive Director 

Jeton Woody 
Planner 

Asian Society of Oklahoma 
Tinny Chang 
President   

Bentley Hedges Travel Services, Inc. 
Bentley Hedges 
General Manager 

Angie Hedges-Hendricks 
President 

Cardinal Engineering, Inc. 
Steve Mason 
President   

Chesapeake Energy Corporation 
Taylor Shinn 
Manager - Corporate Develop. 

Jamie Maddy 
Mgr. - Political & Envir. Affairs 

Choctaw Chamber of Commerce 
Tracy Mosley 
Director   

Council on Developmental Disabilities 
Larry Bartels 
Director   

Edmond Area Chamber of Commerce 
Ken Moore 
President / CEO   

Edmond Citizen Kay Bickham   

Greater OKC Chamber of Commerce 
Mark VanLandingham 
VP, Govt. Relations & Policy   

Ground Water Protection Council 
Mike Paque 
Executive Director 

 Dan Yates 
Dir. of Organizational Develop. 

Guthrie Chamber of Commerce 
Mary Coffin 
President 

Veronica Morava 
Sales Manager 

Harrah Citizen Dean Schirf   

Highway Users Federation 
Paul Matthews 
Executive Director   

Latino Community Devel. Agency 
Sylvia Morales 
Community Volunteer    

Mayor's Council on Disability Concerns 
Pam Henry 
Chairman   

Midwest City Chamber of Commerce 
Bonnie Cheatwood 
Director   

Mustang Chamber of Commerce 
Robert Crout 
Chair, Roads/Legislative Comm. 

 Rebecca Julian 
Director 

 



 

I-2 

ENCOMPASS 2035 CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
VOTING MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES (Cont.) 

Organization Members Alternates 

Neighborhood Alliance of Central Okla. 
Nicolle Franklin 
Board Member   

Nichols Hills Citizen Kathy Walker   

Noble Chamber of Commerce 
Bob Thompson 
Transp. Committee Chair 

Christine Frank 
Executive Director 

Northwest OKC Chamber of Commerce 
Jill McCartney 
Director   

Oklahoma Bicycling Coalition 
Pete Kramer 
405 Region Director   

Oklahoma Chinese Cultural Foundation 
Ming Gu 
Board Member   

Oklahoma City Citizen Teresa L. Bragg   

Oklahoma Electric Cooperative 
Jack Ferrell 
Director of Marketing   

Oklahoma League for the Blind 
Cathy Holden 
Director of Rehab. Services   

Oklahoma Petroleum Marketers Assn. 
Vance McSpadden 
Executive Director   

Oklahoma Railroad Association 
John Kyle 
Director   

Oklahoma Tank Lines 
Greg Price 
President / CEO   

Oklahoma Trucking Association 
Dan Case 
Executive Director   

OnTrac 
Marion Hutchinson 
Board Member   

Sierra Club, Oklahoma Chapter 
Ed Hillock 
Sierra Club, Oklahoma Chapter   

South OKC Chamber of Commerce 
Elaine Lyons 
Director   

Thompson's Woodland NA 
Mary Johnson 
Board Member 

Larry Coffman 
Board Member 

Travelers Aid & Homeless Assistance Ctr. 
Dana Hope Chism 
Executive Director 

Terri Womack 
Community Outreach Director 

United Way of Oklahoma City 
Stephanie Corder 
Community Investment Mgr. 

Blair Schoeb 
Exec. Vice President 

Urban League of Greater Oklahoma City 
Valerie Thompson 
Executive Director 

 Mike Sourie  
Board Member 

Urban Neighbors Mark Gibbs   

Youth Services for Oklahoma County 
Debbie Forshee 
CEO   



 

I-3 

ENCOMPASS 2035 CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
NON-VOTING MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES  

Organization Members Alternates 

Cleveland Area Rapid Transit (CART) 
Doug Myers 
Director   

Central Oklahoma Transportation and 
Parking Authority (COTPA) 

Rick Cain 
Administrator   

DPS / Oklahoma Highway Safety Office 
J. Kevin Behrens 
Assistance Director   

Edmond Citylink 
Shannon Entz 
Community Development Mgr.   

Federal Highway Administration  
Oklahoma  Division 

Isaac Akem 
Community Planner   

First Capital Trolley 
Melissa Fesler 
Director   

OKC Planning Department 
Randy Entz 
Trans. Planner / Trails Coordinator   

Okla. City/County Health Department 
Katrina Garcia 
Epidemiologist 

 

Okla. Dept. of Environmental Quality 
Scott Thomas 
Air Quality Data & Planning Mgr.   

Okla. Dept. of Health 
Marisa New Wells 
Director - Health Equity   

Okla. Dept. of Human Services - Aging 
Victoria Martinez 
Admin. Programs Officer   

Okla. Dept. of Rehabilitation Services 
Vacant 
United We Ride Coordinator   

Okla. Dept. of Transportation 
Jay Adams 
Tribal Liaison   

Okla. Dept. of Transportation - Planning 
Dawn Borelli 
Transportation Manager   

Okla. Dept. of Transportation - Planning 
Linda Koenig 
Statewide Plan Coordinator   

Okla. Dept. of Transportation - Rail Div. 
Joe Kyle 
Division Manager 

John Dougherty 
Assistant Division Manager 

Okla. Dept. of Transportation - Transit 
Kenneth LaRue 
Division Manager   

Oklahoma City Dept. of Airports 
Don Jones 
Airport Facility Planner   

Tinker Air Force Base 
Bill Dalke 
Community Planner   



 

II-1 
 

ATTACHMENT II 
MINUTES 

 
ENCOMPASS 2035 CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CAC) 

March 15, 2010 
 
 
A regular meeting of the Encompass 2035 Citizens Advisory Committee was convened on March 15, 
2010 at 3:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the ACOG offices, 21 E. Main, Suite 100, Oklahoma City, OK. This 
meeting was held as indicated by advance notice filed with the Oklahoma County Clerk and by notice 
posted at the ACOG offices at least twenty-four hours prior to the meeting. 

 
PRESIDING 
 
Dean Schirf, Harrah Citizen 
 
CAC VOTING MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES PRESENT 
 
Teresa Bragg, Oklahoma City Citizen 
Bonnie Cheatwood, Midwest City Chamber of Commerce 
Stephanie Corder, United Way of Oklahoma City 
Robert Crout, Mustang Chamber of Commerce 
Nicolle Franklin, Neighborhood Alliance of Central Oklahoma 
Mark Gibbs, Urban Neighbors 
Pam Henry, Mayor’s Committee on Disability Concerns 
Pete Kramer, Oklahoma Bicycling Coalition 
Jamie Maddy, Chesapeake Energy Corp. (Alternate) 
Paul Matthews, Oklahoma Highway Users Federation 
Sylvia Morales, Community Volunteer 
 
CAC NON-VOTING MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES PRESENT 
 
Isaac Akem, FHWA – Oklahoma Division 
J. Kevin Behrens, DPS/Oklahoma Highway Safety Office 
Rick Cain, COTPA 
Bill Dalke, Tinker AFB 
Randy Entz, OKC Planning Dept. - Trails Coordinator 
Victoria Martinez, Dept. of Human Services (DHS), Aging Services Division 
Doug Myers, Cleveland Area Rapid Transit (CART) 
 
GUEST 
 
Tim Young, City of Tuttle 



 

II-2 
 

STAFF 
 
Holly Massie, Special Programs Officer, TPDS 
John Sharp, Project Coordinator, TPDS 
Andrea Weckmueller-Behringer, Project Coordinator, TPDS 
Pong Wu, Associate Planner, TPDS 
Darla Hugaboom, Associate Planner, TPDS 
Meredith Williams, Assistant Planner, TPDS 
Kara Chiodo, Assistant Planner, TPDS 
Jerry Church, Director of Media and Public Relations 
Ellen Owens, Department Secretary, TPDS 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Chairman Schirf called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. 
 
II. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 16, 2009 MINUTES 
 

Mr. Cain made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 25, 2010 meeting. Ms. Franklin 
seconded the motion and, with the vote, the motion passed. 
 

III. REQUEST FOR AMENDMENT OF THE CURRENT 2030 OCARTS PLAN BY THE CITY OF NORMAN 
 
Ms. Weckmueller-Behringer said that the City of Norman has requested an amendment to the 
2030 Long Range Transportation Plan. They would like Cedar Lane Rd. between 12th Ave. SE 
and ½ mile east of 24th Ave. SE be designated as a four-lane facility. She indicated that Cedar 
Lane is located south of SH-9. She said this road needs to be widened due to recent residential 
and commercial development. The completion of the project is expected to occur sometime 
before 2015 at a cost of approximately $4.5 million. She said the maintenance cost for the 
facility that is currently programmed in the Long Range Plan is $360,000. The updated 
maintenance cost for the new facility will be the same amount, therefore, the total Plan cost 
would only increase by the construction cost. She said the amendment will not negatively 
impact the Long Range Plan as there is enough money to cover this improvement.  
 
Mr. Matthews asked if the Plan has been approved by the Norman City Council. 
Ms. Weckmueller-Behringer replied in the affirmative saying that currently Cedar Lane is 
shown as a four-lane facility in the Norman 2025 Transportation Plan. Ms. Massie commented 
that ACOG does require that the city council of the requesting entity approve a resolution to 
make the request before it comes to the Committee. She also commented that the federal 
requirement is that the Long Range Plan be financially constrained.  
 
Mr. Schirf asked if there is a certain formula that determines a dollar amount communities can 
participate in. Ms. Massie said there is no dollar figure by entity for the long-range plan. 
However, the urbanized area funds that ACOG receives from the Federal Highway 



 

II-3 
 

Administration (FHWA) (about $16 million annually) are capped so that no single entity can 
obligate more than 56% of the funds any given year. Mr. Akem said the STP funds are 
distributed, in part, based on population. The state of Oklahoma receives a certain amount 
annually, based on its population, and then a portion of the funds are distributed to the two 
TMA’s (Oklahoma City and Tulsa metro areas) based on the ratio of their population. He said it 
is provided to the region, not to individual cities within the region.  
 
Mr. Crout remarked that there is a very important street that will be upgraded soon in Mustang 
that is missing from the 2030 Plan map. Ms. Massie said that at the time the Plan was put 
together, the traffic level may not have been significant enough. For the Encompass 2035 
Plan, that street may be added to the network and he or Mustang staff should bring it to ACOG’s 
attention as the 2035 Plan network is developed.  
 
There being no further discussion, Mr. Cain made a motion to recommend that the ITPC amend 
the 2030 OCARTS Plan to designate Cedar Lane Rd, between 12th Ave. SE and ½ mile East of 
24th Ave. SE, as a four-lane facility. Mr. Matthews seconded the motion, and with the vote, the 
motion passed. 
 

IV. REQUEST FOR AMENDMENT OF THE CURRENT 2030 OCARTS PLAN BY THE CITY OF TUTTLE 
 
Ms. Weckmueller-Behringer informed the Committee that the City of Tuttle has requested an 
amendment to the 2030 OCARTS Plan to have Cimarron Rd. between SH-37 and Rock Creek Rd. 
designated as a three-lane facility. She said it is their primary north-south corridor through 
downtown Tuttle, carrying high peak time traffic volumes. She indicated the Cimarron Rd. 
project is broken out into four phases with completion for the first three expected in 2012, and 
the last and biggest phase, in 2015. The estimated cost of the construction is approximately 
$4.0 million for all phases. She said the maintenance cost will actually be reduced.  
 
There being no discussion, Mr. Crout made a motion to recommend that the ITPC amend the 
2030 OCARTS Plan to designate Cimarron Rd., between SH-37 and Rock Creek Rd. as a three-
lane facility. Mr. Cain seconded the motion and, with the vote, the motion passed. 

 
V. EPA STRENGTHENS OZONE STANDARDS 

 
Ms. Hugaboom gave a presentation on air quality, specifically, the current state of affairs with 
federal regulations. She said ozone is a summertime issue that occurs when volatile organic 
compounds combine with nitrogen oxide, particularly when there is direct sunlight, warm 
temperatures, and little wind. She said high ozone levels can affect everyone’s health; at low 
levels, it will affect people with seasonal allergies, asthma, heart problems, etc.  
 
Ms. Hugaboom referred Committee members to the latest emission inventory which showed 
that 54% of current emissions are from mobile sources. She said that if Central Oklahoma is 
determined to be out of compliance with federal regulations, it could have a big impact on our 



 

II-4 
 

region. She indicated that we will have to show that the region’s transportation improvements 
will not adversely impact our air quality.  
 
Ms. Hugaboom said that in 2008, EPA changed the ozone standard from .08 parts per million 
(ppm) to .075 ppm. She said that although the standard was changed, it was not changed 
according to what the scientific community recommended, which was .60 to .70 ppm. She said 
there were many lawsuits by environmental groups which resulted in the new proposed 
standard being changed to a lower number within that range.  
 
Ms. Hugaboom showed a U.S. map displaying the 322 counties that are not in compliance with 
the current .075 standard. She said that 515 counties would violate if the standard is changed 
to 0.07 ppm. She commented that with a three year running average (2008, 2009, and 2010) 
the maximum ozone level Central Oklahoma could have in 2010 at the .07 level would be .061 
ppm. She said that, in the history of collecting data in the Oklahoma City area, we have never 
attained that level.  
 
She indicated that ACOG is preparing a comment letter to EPA on the proposed standard, and 
submissions are due Monday, March 22. She said that on August 31, 2010 the final rule will be 
issued by the EPA after a full review of all the comments received during the comment period. 
 
Ms. Hugaboom said that in January the State will review the ozone data and recommend the 
multi-county areas that they think will not be in compliance. The final designation of 
attainment or non-attainment by EPA will be in August, 2011.  
 
Mr. Schirf commented that the standard prior to 2008, was .08 ppm. He asked if we were in 
compliance with the standard that was established in 2008. Mr. Church said we were and 
commented that our ozone levels have gone down since the eight-hour standard was 
implemented in 1997. He said that we have done our part as a region, but there is nothing we 
can do when they keep lowering the standard.  
 
Ms. Morales commented that idling cars are a big contributor to ozone levels and suggested we 
could require businesses to close their drive-thru windows on alert days. Ms. Hugaboom said 
that we are still in attainment, so all of our ozone reduction measures are voluntary.  
 
Mr. Matthews asked if ACOG has objected through our Congressional delegation to the EPA that 
these standards are not realistic and that we oppose the imposition of standards that have 
dropped us down below acceptable levels. Mr. Church said that ACOG does have a set of 
legislative issues and our executive director and senior staff has expressed this in the 
legislative issues. Mr. Church remarked that ACOG’s perspective is that we have to carry out the 
policy as it is delivered to us. We understand that the standards are health-based and when 
the final rules come down, we will have to carry them out.  
 



 

II-5 
 

Ms. Morales mentioned the comment letter and asked who the letter will go to. Ms. Hugaboom 
said that it will go to EPA. Ms. Morales asked if she could have a copy of that letter and 
Ms. Hugaboom replied in the affirmative.  
 
Mr. Akem said that if we are designated as non-attainment, there will be an opportunity to 
develop plans that will enable us to state how we will meet the standard. It does not require us 
to immediately meet that standard, it just requires us to have a plan to show we will meet the 
standard.  
 
Mr. Schirf commented that, in the past, EPA has threatened that transportation funds could be 
withheld if standards are not met. He asked if money has actually ever been withheld from any 
community not meeting their SIP Plan in areas where ozone is a real problem. Mr. Akem said 
that happened in Atlanta for a short period of time.  
 
Mr. Matthews suggested that the CAC make a motion expressing its opposition to the changes 
EPA is trying to impose on the metropolitan areas by asking that ACOG continue to fight the 
lowering of the ozone standard and to make them more realistic. Ms. Morales seconded the 
motion.  
 
Mr. Franklin stated that she felt the motion was too broad. She said that we might be more 
successful if we said we felt the acceleration of the standard was too fast. Ms. Morales agreed 
that it was moving too fast and stated that businesses are trying to comply with air and energy 
standards and if it was possible to meet the .06 standard, we would be there. 
 
Mr. Kramer commented that, based on the ACOG presentation, ACOG is already making it known 
that the standards are extreme for this region. He said that perhaps the motion should be 
modified to reflect that we appreciate the efforts that ACOG has taken and encourage them to 
do as much as they can within the parameters to represent this region in opposing the new 
standard. Mr. Schirf asked Mr. Matthews if he wanted to amend his motion. Mr. Matthews 
replied that he did not and stated that he thought we should be stronger in our opposition.  
 
Mr. Matthews clarified his motion, which was for the CAC to express its opposition to the 
proposed EPA standards which are unrealistic, making it harder for our region to comply. Mr. 
Schirf asked if Mr. Matthews is also concerned with the implementation timeline as it relates to 
the new standard. Mr. Matthews said that yes, the timeline for meeting the deadlines to 
comply with the standards does work into it. Ms. Morales stated that her second to the motion 
still stands, and that she feels it is supportive of ACOG’s position. 

 
Mr. Schirf commented that, if this should pass, it in no way alters what ACOG needs to do to 
adhere to the regulatory process to stay in compliance. He said the purpose of the motion is to 
state that the CAC is concerned with the more stringent standards proposed by EPA.  

 
Mr. Schirf called for the vote on Mr. Matthews’ motion. The motion passed with the following 
vote: 



 

II-6 
 

 AYE:   Bragg, Cheatwood, Corder, Crout, Henry, Maddy, Matthews, and Morales 
  NAY:  Franklin and Kramer 
  ABSTAIN: Gibbs 
 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 There was no new business discussed at the meeting. 
 
VII. ADJOURN 
 
 There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 3:55 p.m. 


	ATTACHMENT II
	MINUTES
	PRESIDING
	CAC VOTING MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES PRESENT
	CAC NON-VOTING MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES PRESENT
	STAFF
	ACOG
	Association of Central Oklahoma Governments

